IN THE SUPREME COURT OF JUDICATURE OF JAMAICA

IN COMMON LAW

SUIT NO. C, L.

BETWEEN

AND

1976 C. 307

URVILL GHIN PLAINTIFF

THE JAMATCA PUBLIC
SERVICE COMPANY I8D. DEFENDANTS

H, Haughton-Gayle for the Plaintiff

R, Williams, Q.C. & WK, Chin See for Defendants.

Hearing:

DELIVERED::

WRIGHT J,

January 29, 30, 31, 1979
June 25, 264 27y 1979
November 26, 27, 2@3%1979

March 3, 4, 5, 1980
1%th November, 1981

JUDGMENT

In contemplation of the Plaintiff operating a supermarket at

premises No. 30 -~ 32 Manchester Road, Mandeville, he in the month of

December, 1968 entered into a contract with the Defendant gompany for

supplying of electricity to those premises, The service was duly

installed on 10th December, 1968 and thereafter the defendant on a

regular basis submitted bills for electricity supplied as indicated by

the meter installed on the plaintiff's premises and payments were made

from time to time. However, in November, 1975 the plaintiff received a

letter dated November 21 over the signature of H,E, Bennett, Manager,

Revenue Accounting which states -~

W A recent examination of the above electricity
supPly revealed that the Meter Seals have been
broken, and there was also evidence of tampering
with our equipment installed on your premisese.
Our Technician has resealed the meter and left
it working accurately. We have conseguently
billed your account over the period of this
irregularity based on consumption recorded on
the meter during an inferference-free period
and we reguest immediate settlement of this
bill for $14,806.54 which is enclosed herewith,

Interference with our equipment is a very serious
violation of our Terms and Conditions of service
and any evidence of a recurrence of this act will
leave us no alternative but to remove the meter

oy
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" and service from the premises and
further, renders you liable to
prosecution,®

Faced with this demand and the very serious threat to his business the
plaintiff sought the services of Mr. O, Crosbie, Attorney-at-Law who by
letter dated the 2nd December, 1975 denied the indebtedness and the
charge of tampering.

The defendant replied by letter dated December 16, 1975 which
reads in part -

" The meter at the above-address was inspected
on the 24th October, 1975 and was found to be
registering incorrectly due to the fact that
the pointers had been misplacede. These were
adjusted and left reading 8,265 KWH on 24410.75
A subsequent reading 24 days later revealed a
consumption of 6,370 KWH and on the basis of the
consumption for the period your clients bi-monthly
consumption was estimated at 15,924 KWH., This
estimate, though still short of the recorded bi-
monthly consumption up to the meter-reading of
2kth March, 1970 was very much more than the
highest recorded bi-monthly consumption of 9,000
KWH, subsequent to that date, In view of this
the consumption for the bi-monthly periods
March 24, 1970 to September 29, 1975 has becn
estimated on the basis of the known consumption for
twenty~four days following the correction of the
Meter Pointes and your client's account has been
adjusted accordingly.

Unless satisfactory arrangements for the payment

of the outstanding amount is made within seven days

from the date of this letter we will have no

alternative but to discontinue the supply."
The plaintiff was thus confronted with the bhasis for the defendant!'s
charge of tampering and an unyielding demand for payment. So, on
December 19, 1975 Mr, Crosbie was on the telephone to the defendant's
Credit Manager and under protest agreed to certain terms which he later
incorporated in his letter dated Decembér 22, 1975 the relevant portions
of which read as follows:~

M Further to telephone conversation between your

Mr., Morris =~ Credit Control Manager and me of
the 19th instant under protest and without any

admission of liability by my client, Mr. Urvill Chin,

of your demand for payment of Fourteen Thousand
Seven Hundred and Fifteen Dollars and Eight Cents
($14,715,08) as amount due as adjustments I am

instructed by Mr. Chin to make the following arrange-

nmentse.

a) Immediate payment of the sum of $3,000 which
is enclosedes
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b) Pull payments within twelve months from date,

c) Payment of interest on any outstanding balance
at any rate of interest at which J.P.3., Co. Ltde.
pays interest on loans to it in the normal
courseof its business for working capital or at
the rate of interest a commercial bank charges
a business such as J,P.8. Ltd. for working capital
whichever is less.

a) Further payments of the balance of amount
represented as adjustments by eleven egual monthly

instalments and interest thereon when liguidated
and notified to Mr. Chin,

e) #0080 Q2o Vetrgltswnane

f) 0 ¢ 0 Q0 0080t oPporsoe ten

Be it further expressly stated that all payments and
arrangements are made under protest and without any
admission of liability,."

A further letter from Mr, Crosbie dated 20th January, 1976
requested that the meter be tested and questioned the charge of tampering
in the light of an amended bill which reflected a reduction in the amount
claimeds Mr. Bennett's letter dated 23rd February, 1976 in reply explained
this new ameunt, Credit had been pgiven for payments made and additional
sums debited up to 23rd January, 1976,

The plaintiff not being satisfied with what the defendant hoped would be
a resolution of the issue brought his action in which he claims =

1) A declaration that he is not liable to pay the amount
of $144715,08 claimed by the defendant or any part
thereof,

2) Alternatively, a declaration that if the plaintiff is
indebted to the defendant at all it would be for a
three (3) month period of service only as aforesaid and
that any such indebtedness would amount to a small
fraction of the amount claimed,

3) Refund of the said amount of $3%,000,00 paid.

4)  An order that the defendant by their directors, officers,,
servants, workman or agents or any of them or otherwise
howsoever be restrained from doing the following acts or
any of them, that is to say, discontinuing or diminishing
the electricity supply to the said premises by reason of
non~paynent of the said sum of $14,715.08 or any part
thereof or for any unreasonable cause whatsoevere

The defence persists in the charge of Tampering and alleges that this
constituted breaches of conditions and/or fundamental terms of the said

contract and/or a deviation by the plaintiff from the terms of the said

contract or alternatively was a fundamental breach of contract on the part
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of the plaintiff., The defence continues that because of such breaches
the plaintiff is preeluded from relying on a particular term {Revised
Sheet No. 212) of the Standard Terms and Conditions subject £o which the
contract was made and upon which the plaintiff places great reliance,
gven if, which is not admitted that teruﬂﬁzgzplicable. Aecordingly, the
defenee denies that the plaintiff is entitled to the relief claimed or
any relief at all,

In addition, the defence counter-claims for the amount of
$14,715.08 less $12,000,00 paid as at 1bkth December, 1976 - balance
$2,715,08.

It is the case for the defence, and the plaintiff admitted this
in cross=~examination, that the contract was for thz payment by the plaint-
iff for electricity consumed on the premisess However, the contention
runs, until the irregularity was discovered and the adjustment of the
pointers made, the defendant was not in a position, for the period in
gquestion, to submit normal bills for the true cost of the electricity
supplied., Hence the amount claimed,

In his reply the plaintiff denies the tampering as well as
breach of any conditions or fundamental terms of the contract or any
deviation from the terms of the contract or any fundamental breach of cone:
tracte And, whereas the defendant alleges a duty on the part of the
plaintiff to take reasonable care not to allow the meter on his premises
to be tampered with the plaintiff}s reply disclaims any such dutye.

Before embarking upon a consideration of . the evidence adduced
it may be appropriate to set out the provisions of Revised Sheet #212
which bulks so largely in the plaintiff's case. Reference will later
on be made to other Revised Sheets prayed in aid by the defence.

The relevant portion of Revised Sheet No, 212 reads:-—

W  The meter will be the property of the company
and will be tested at regular intervals. The
company at any time upon the written or verbal
request of a consumer will test the meter of ‘
such consumer, provided only one such test shall
be free of charge within a twelve month wperiod,
and the consumer shall pay the cost of any

additional tests within this period unless the
meter is shown +tn be inaccurate in excess of 2%.
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In the event of/stoppage or failure of
the meter to repister, the consumer will
be billed for such period on an estimnated
consumption based upon his use of electirical
energy in a similar period of like use,

In event of #ny registration inaccurate in

excess of 2%, bills will be adjusted by an

amount to compensate for the excess or

deficiency for a period equal to one half

of the time 2lasped since the previous meter

test hut not to exceed three months., UNo part

of a minumum charge will be refunded,”
A portent of the dogredness with which the proceedings would be conducted
was clearly given by Mre. Haughton-Gayle's manouvres to have the defendant
begine. It was his contention that the defendant had agreed to so much of
what the plaintiff pleaded that the defendant should begin. But what the
case is really-about is the plaintiff!'s effort to avoid liabilities arising
under a contract from which he is nol resiling. And, furthermore he could
not rest his case on the admissions made by the defendant. Accordingly, I
ruled that the plaintiff should begin.

The plaintiff called no witness but himself but by consent
several letters and copies of letters passing between the parties were
admitted in evidence as Exhibit 5. viz:

Letter from Mre. II.H, Bennett to Mr, U. Chin dated 21st Nov., 1975.

Copy letter from Mr., 0. Crosbie to Mr. H.E., Bennett dated

2nd December, 1975,

Letter f r o n Mre H.,E, Bennett to Mr. O, Croshie dated

16th December, 1975,

Copy letter from Mr. 0. Crosbile to Mr. H.E. Bennett dated

22nd December, 1975,

Copy letter from Mr. O, Crosbie to Mr. H.E. Bennett dated

20th January, 1976,

Letter from ¥r. H.,E. Bennett to Mr. 0. Crosbie dated 27rd February,

1976 (with Statement of Account attached).

Copy letter from Mr. O, Crosbie to Mr. H.fh, Bennett dated

10th April, 1976.

Copy letter from Mr. O, Crosbie to Mr. H.E. Bennett dated

8th June, 1976,

Letter from Mr. C.T, Gilbert to Mre. O. Crosbie dated

2nd December, 1976,
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Copy letter f{from H.H. Casserly to Mr. U. Chin dated 12th May,

1977
In addition he tendered as Sxhibit 1 the copy letter of application to
the Jamaica Public Service Co, Ltd. dated 26th August, 19683
Exhibit 2, The receipt dated 10th December, 19686 for the deposit he paid
Jor the meter,
Exhibit 3. Copy of the Standard Terms and Conditions which governs the
Arreement into which he entered with the defendant company;
Exhibit 4, TForty-nine (49) Bills received for electricity supplied.

Exhibit 4A - 5, Bills received for electricity supplied subsegquent to

period covered by Exhibit &4,
Exhibit 1 discloses the nature of the business the plaintiff
proposed to operate and the type of supply he requesteds, It reads:=-

" It is my intention to open a supermarket and
store at 30 - 32 Manchester Road, I have
bought refrigeration equipped for use on 220
volts % phase 50 cycle current., These compres-=
sors are one - five horse power and one ~ throe
horse power., We will be air-cdnditioning this
building within six months of opening and this
unit will be approximately 15 tons or 15 hpe
We are thinking of 2 modern meat deportment
which would entail a cold-room and meat cutting
equipment, We are therefore applying for the
type of current to facilitate the uniform ruan~
ning of these equipment i.,e. 220V 50C 3 ph 30hp.

The opening date is plannéd for the =nd of

Hovember, so we would aprreciate having power

available in October to test-run the equipment

etc,'
It i3 clear that if everything went as planned the plaintiff's projection
was for an increase in the consumption of electricity by his businesse
However, an examination of the bills tendered in evidence reveals, SuUrpriSm
ingly, that even at a time when business was on the increase the consump-
tion of electricity diminished dramatically.

The plaintiff testified that the defendsant installed their ueter
on the outside of the northern wall of the supermarket over & ft. from the
ground and that a pump from which he s0ld kerosene oil was also on that
side of the buildinge. Much time was spent in an endeavour to locate the
meter in relation to the kerosene oil pump to which the membors of the

that he could
public had access - the manifest intention being to demonstrute//not reach
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the meter to tamper with it bLut that the general public had such access.
In the process he confused himself and left me unimpressed by that
aspect of his case, He also cave evidence that he was born in Jamaica

but went to China at the age of two (2) and spent about twenty (20)

0SS

years there and that as a conscquence his knowledge of English is not too

good, This latter bit of evidence ws introduced after lunch on the Jirs
date he testified presumably to account for his demeanour in the witness
box in the pre-=lunch session., But. more of this anon,
The plaintifft's evidence in-~chief relating to the usage of
electricity on the premises may be conveniently set out at this point.
" Supermarket opened in 1968 and at that time we had -
1 meat case -~ freeger
1 displaycas for fresh milk etc.
Lights
I live upstairs supermarket with my family. at that
time we had -
1 Televigion set
1 Radio
1 Blectric Iron
In 1972 we bought two (2) more freezers - small ones
and in 1974 we bought a water heater and a water punp
to pump water upstairs.
Since 1975 we use flood lights on the outside in the
back yard - none before 1975 (Supermarket was broken
in 1975).
Opening hours were 9 a.me = 8 peme Ffor all shopning
dayse Hours kept changing from 1975. On Wednesduys
we close the whole day and on other days we close at
5400 pema. instead and should be using less current
inside supermarket -~ lights turned off inside then.
Used Cash Registers from time supermarket opened -
started with four., They use electricity. We have
one more since about 1970 but sometimes we use only
three,
Freezers and Display Cases not always full because
of shortages. Sometimes we turn off some freerzers -
since 1973,
First knew mcters were supposed to have been Lampered
with when I got the letter dated 21st November, 1975
claiming $14,806.54, Knew nothing of such allegation

before that, Since that date I have not locked at the
meter nor did I ever inspect the meter before that,

t
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amount on bills varied - don't recall getting

any bills for identical

amounts,

My son draw cheques for bills most of the times.

Son does the book work.

I may pay a bill now and

then, Before receipt of the letter in November 1975
I had no reason to believe anytiiing wreng with bills

or meter,Y

If this evidence is helieved the conclusion could be drawn therefore that

the plaintiff would be unaware of the extent to which the electricity bills

were contributing to his operationsl exvenses and would not on that

consideration be induced to employ any unorthodox method to reduce his

expenses in that regard,

But unless he were a simpleton, a view with which

I do not concur, I find it difficult to accept that his acquaintance with

this recurrent item of expenditure could be as cacual as he would have me

believe.s

The bills tendered in evidence do not account for all the charges

made for electricity supplied - some are

evidence will now be set out (Exhibit 4)

said to be missing. Those in

Date billed to Consumption Ariount
(KW, H,)

23.7.69 1890 (£33.15.9) - § 67.58
27.5469 1798 (£29. 7.7) 58.76
2, 7,69 1782 (£29. 7.9) 58,78
24.9.69 17620 "2, 82
25.11.69 253840 612,79
271470 19200 481,03
24 .3,70 18200 460477
(date omitted) 8140 21347
2511470 700 27413
26,14 71 9000 23k ,2
2543477 9000 (estimated) 216,02
27.5.71 9000 (estimated) 220,52
26.7.71 9000 217.82
24k,9,71 6640 168,70
2k 11,71 8210 204,97
26.1.72 5020 145,06

105 &



(3 bills missing)

273,73
28.5.73
26.7.73
249,73
(1 bill missing)
2h 1.7k

2543474
25,5, 74

2L.9.7h
26.,11.74
241,75

2“"03.75

367475
29.9475

2949475

21.11.75
23.1,76
25.5.76
24,7476
23.9.76

24 ,5.77 = 25.7.77

5960
2200
2100
1560
2h00

2020

1740
600
9Lo

2020
1220
820

1020

15,92k

29,520
14,940
14,340

14,680

15,270

14,700

Inergy
Fuel

Enerpgy
Fuel

Inergy
Truel

Energy
Fuel

Energy
Fuel

Bnergy
fuel

Inergy
Fuel

Energy
Fuel

Energy
Fuel

Inergy
Fuel

Energy
Fuel

Energy
Fuel

Energy
TMuel

charge

charpge

charge

charge

charge

charze

charge

% 159.022

Co
1
.
o
U1

W
\G)

-
1

M

[
[

~J

3

) 80,20
) 53423

) 70.05
22481

) 61.62

) 72.62
29,02

$14,715.08

charge

charge

charge

charge

Charg‘e

charge

Y61,073.26
643,54

) 850.26
316,73

) 886.23
293.25

) 923,34
305,34

) 97743
334,41

) 1,008 ,46
411.60
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Dxhibit b4

23,3478 12,400 tnergy charge ) $  941.13
Fuel Gl 5h

25.5478 15,020 Fnergy charge ) 1,105,94
Tuel Shl L8

257478 14,620 Fnerpy charge ) 1,307.28
Tuel L72.52

25.9478 2,250 Energy charge ) 270,75
Fuel 1127k

22.11.78 2k, 520 , Tnergy charge ) 24169.56
Fuel 1,266.46

The reason for setting out the details of these bills is to
facilitate a ready reference to the patternof consumption as well as
the attendant cost to the plaintiff bearing in mind his evidence that
he had very little knowledpge of this aspect of the business. It is
readily observed for the period of nearly seven (7) years to the
2L4th October, 1975 when the adjustment was made that the stated amount
of consumption exceeded 10,000 KiH only four (4) times with a low of
220 KWH (23.7.75) costing $26.64 for a two month usage by a supermarket
and residence! But the plaintiff was not even rcquired to pay that total
because at that time there was a Government subsidy which reduced the
consumer'!s liability. The plaintiff was required to pay only #23.00.
By contrast the bills submitted disclose that since the date of
adjustment with the exception of one occasion (bill to 25.9.78) when
the consumption was 2,250 the rate of consumption was considerably well
in excess of 10,000 KWH, Mammodth though the defendant's enterprise nay
be it remains an unsolved puzzle that the irregularity alleged by letter
dated December 16, 1975 to have set in after the rezding for 24th March,
1970 when the congumption nose~dived from a ki-monthly total of 15,200 KW
to 8,140 KWH after which no bill showed an amount in excess of 9000 KiIH
was not discovered earlier. Indeed until discovery it may well be said
that the consumption rate remained constantly submerged below the 10,000

KiH level! So much for the nonce. I shall have more to say about it

later on.
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The crogs~exanmination of the plaintiff by Mr. Williams was
rigorous and unsparing. The stapge was set when the plaintiff was nsde
to testify!

" T consider myself an honest man and as
guch I exvected at all times to pay for

electricity consumed on the premises in
guestion - normal ch&rses.

Then followed.:

Qe As an honegt man wouldn't you expect at
all times to pay proper charges for
electricity consumed on the premiszes
regardless of whether the meter was
working properly or not?

s
=
ae

Yes -~ I expected J.P.,S,., to supply
electricity to the premises and I would

pay the proper charge for such electricity
regardless of whether the meter was working
properly or not,"

The plaintiff disclosed that the business took about two years to pick
up so that about early 1971 business was fairly good though not Vreally
good."™ It became really good about 1972 and kept up for about two
years and then decline started. In 1974 the business was good enough
to enable him to acquire two extra freezers because he needed space for
chicken meat.

Cross-examination disclosed two other pleces of electrically

operated equipments viz: 1 floor polisher and
1 refrigerator.

Yhen asked to account for the non-disclosure of the refrigerator which
is in the residence upstairs he said he had forgotten it. as for the
polisher he at first denied he had any but retracted and admitted he
had one from the opening of the supermarket but had forgotten to
mention it because it is rarely used.

The plaintiff revealed that in early 1969 the size of his
family residine upstairs the supermarket was 7 - the plaintiff, his
wife and mother and four children, Ile maintained however, that cooking
was done by gas and that the children were then at school and e¢2me home
only on holidays.

It is evident that the size of the family is a factor to be

considered as relevant to the question of consumption of electricity.
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But I cannot say that the size of the family has been settled. His
evidence on this aspect of the case runs thus:-

" Pamily at prezent - me, my wife, mother
and one son. Children were at school

and corie only at holidays. They are
still at schicol - two nore.

Farly in 1959 size of family living
upstairs was four children me and wife
and rother., Some in Canada, T think
first went in 1970. 41l four are now
in Canada - one went last year (1978)
and two left 2 - 3 years apgo.”

To my mind it is evident thot the plaintiff appreciates fully the
significance of the questions reloting to the size of his fanily and
in an effort to minimize the effect has rather succeeded in confusing
the issue and clouding his credit.

Another aspect of consumption about which the plaintiff has

een rather unhelpful is as regard&the sale of kerosene oil. He
stated that the demand for this item did not increase as the demand
for food and he was not certain that with the picking=-up of the
business the sale of kerosene oil became much more,

The plaintifif was Severely tested with refercnce to certain
bills in the low~billing period in contrast to previous bills and he
adnitted, as reflected by the bills that at & time when he said the
business had picked up he was paying less than half the charge on the
previous bill but he could not account for the phenomenon. T find as
a fact that his testimony relating to expenses for electricity is
indeed equivocal, He did not blame it on his sons but he did advance
the evidence that from the opening of Che supermzrket even a thirteen
(13) year old son wss drawing cheques for the business though he did
not sign them., They were signed by the plaintiff and his wife, Then
his evidence followed:-

MOAt first up to 1970-71 wife and I signed

all cheques, A4fter that Michael signed
too., I did not notice the billing to
be surprised at the drop; I was always
interested in the expenses of the
supermarket. Iven if son drew cheque

T woull not sce the related bill. I
looked after store-room., Yes I did
interest myself in the financial
managenent of the business.
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" Blectricity is o sipnificant expense so

for g o supermarket is concerned,

I wes not surprised whout tihe
reading of 8,140 Kl and Tor
charcses were #213,47 .0

Be it observed that this is the Tirst bill for the period under

guery and come after a bill showing o consunyp

Pressed further aboubt the drop his evidence ran thus:-

" Not happy <bout the drop shown oun that
bill, Not unhappy either. I w not
pleased =t the amount I hwd to pay. Yes
I an aware of wpayuents for electricity
for the supermarket, I kept an cye on
the expenscs for electricity. 1 hardly
looked on the bills but I knew how wmuch
I had to nay, I knew T had to pay
$213,47 for clectricity. Not pleased
about the amount I had to pay - I know
about =ayment of that bill for %$27.13
(700 xwi

Qs Were you amaned at this?

<

Ly Didn't bother me at all."
Even nmaking allowance for the heat menerated by the cross-exaiilnition
it must be admitted that the plaintiff displays an intriguing inconsis=—
tency in his attitude to the expenses for clectricity which he adnits
contributes significantly to the cost of operating the supcrncrket, The
question that clamours for attention is what lay behind this inconsis-
tency? Is it the plaintiff's unfamiliarity with the language as he clains
or is it knowledge of an involvement in the tampering which the defendant
DUrsSucs S0 relentlessly? In this regard it is relevant to bear in mind
that, after some fencing with Mr. Willioans, the plaintiff did admit thot
he knows the dials on the meter - this after he had stated cat@goricaliy
that he does not know what the dials on the meter lools like -~ haviag
gean thern sometimes when he passes, In addition he also testified that
he hardly compared the bills, he doesn't understand the reading of the
bills and he hoas no idea what "present!” and "previous' meter reading
neans Then under further pressure he seemed to capitulate as he sald -

" I now know that 'present! means what the
meter showed on the last reading and that

o

'previous! is what it showed hefore."

With his credit under constant pressure he testified, with

YA
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regard to the all-time low bill for which he »paid $23%.060 for & two month
period, that he was not surpriscd ot that bill but cventually yiclded tho
response that in the witness-box he was anazed at the drop. Turther he
adnitted that he knew that fron May 1970 elactricity was costing him far
less until the 2djustment was mnade in September 1975. The inevitable
suzgestion followed that admission:
Suggestion:t

" With that knowledge you were not surprised
when the Jamaica Public Service said that
the apparent drop in the cost of electricity
was the result of tampering with the metor,”

Answer: " Even now I don't understand.”
Unon the suggestion being repeated and sharpened by other questions the
plaintiff obliged -

" Yes - 'me frishten' when Jamaica Public Service
said meter toampered with. I was frightened
because they said they would cut off the lirsht.

I did not know of tampering until I got the
letter, Then I knew. The amount of money

frightened me and they claimed someone had
tampered with the meter. I was frightened

because we hadn't tampered with it. Letter
did not say I or anyone on rny behalf had
tampered,

The neter is on my premises and 'concerned to
ne,!' Chiefly the nmoney IrlbhtenOd ne. After
receiving the letter I was satisfied that Ltie
allepation of tamwering was trues I still
feel that the neter was tampered with.!
(underlining is uine. )

Tt is not inconsistent with this adnission to conclude that the plaintiff's
obvious discomfiture was due lens to any linguistic incompetence on his
part than to the fear that what he had admitted, albeit to himself, he
might be forced to admit publicly and then face such consequences &S Ay
attend upon such admission. ind yet, in all fairness to him, it can be
ungrudpingly coneded that even an innocent person in the plaintiff's
position who may unwittingly have bec me the beneficiary of tampering
confronted not only with the demand for immediate payment of an amount
in excess of #$14,000 but witl. a threat of the removal of the meter from
the premises plus a possible criminal prosecution might have found it
difficult to resist the temptation to panic. His position 1% cex riainly
an invidious one. He is not free to call the company's bluff, refuse Lo

may the amount claimed and dare the comnany to do Lt's worsc. mhat would
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effectively bring his business to an abrupt end; for he has no ~lternative
source of elecctricity to which he may turn,

However, naving granted that concession, I nust husten to state
that the plaintiff had not yet ;;iven his last word on the asjpect ui
tampering, final thoupsh the adnission nmay seems, That admission was node
just shortly bhefore the court took the luncheon adjouramant at 1:00 »H.m,
on the 3rd day of the heuaring. Upon the resunmption at 2:30 wn.m. the
crosg~exanination dealt with the »laintiff's indebtedness to the
defendant whereupon he admitted to having paid all but ¥2,715 of the amount
derianded plus an amount of #11,000 which has become due since October
1975, After identifying o weter in Court as similar to the one installed
on his premises he was being quizzed about the letter of 16th Decetiber, 1975
(supra) when the evidence took a rather strance turn. He stated that he
objected to the course taken by Janaica Public Service and was asked whye
Answer: " I don't think I owe them money heccause the

period back to 1970 was too far., I don't
understand.”

This answer must be viewed apainst hiz evidence that as an honest man he

expected to pay for electricity actually consumed on the premnises.

Further qu¢stioning elicited the following cvidenca:i-

U T don't know that Jamaica Public 3Zervice is
saying tanpering took place about 1970
that's why adjustment made from March 1970.

I don't know the period of adjustment thouch

I saw a paper. Yes, I sce date 24th Morch, 1970
in the letter. I know that in their view the
tanpering took place about then. I don't

know if the tampering took place ahout thut
time, I did not mean to say I knecw somebody
tampered with the meter through I don't
understand the Enszlish,

I want to chan:c my evidence i.e., that I still
fzel the metor was tampered with, I want to

b ny evidonce that T am satis jJOd that
alle~ation of tammering iz true to I d
know if. anybody tampercd with it.
change 'I still feel the neter was
with'! to say 'I don't know anybody th
tampered with the meter.' I wrnt to chin-e
it becouse you say I know somebody tampered
with the moeter, I realised that just after
Junch,

I know what dishonest means. 1 anree with
you that 1 am belng dishonest in changing
ny evidence .t

[063
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The time wes 3:50 p.m, sand the adjournment was taken on that rather
embarrassing note., Wren the hearing resumed five months later 1t
wis announced that the cross-examination was closed.
The comment I wonld indul e at this point is that bearing

in wind the languare difficultly pleaded by the plaintiff he succeeded

within a very short zpon of time to make a volte face that reflects

~reat inpenuity. For such a reconstruction to be poszible, if
language deficit were genuine, he would have had to acquire within

that lunch period a knouledge of the Bnglish which had evaded hin

all his 1life! And to achieve this he would have to be far more

capable than he would wish the court to believe, But no attorney
worthy of the title could have loft his client in the plipght in which
the plaintiff found himself =t the close of the cross-examination, =o
the necessary and inevitabls re-exanination was undertaken with a view,
if possible, to correcting the plaintiff's position., The result was
not flattering., The plaintiff resvonded:

Ry

" When in cross~examination 1 agreed I
was being dishonest I sald s¢ because
my Fnglish not too moods Came to
Janaica 271 years of ane butl I dont
understand meaning of dishonest. In
this casce when I sadid I was dishonest
T meant the same as honest, W

o one could have envied the »laintiff for the sense of relief he must
have felt when he left the witness-box without havin. to say uwhat he

meant by 'honest.! Tor indeced his clarification connotes an understanding
»f the word 'thonest.' 3But it is short of mind-boggling that a father

who had sons of the ages of 26 and 24 did not know the differcnce hetweon
'dishonest! and 'honest'? I do not say that his clarification really

.

clarified the issue, Rather has it left him exposed to the most

5 suggestions not the least of which is that he could indulge in

the most dislionest conduct without compunction in the belief that such

conduct was honest. ..nd be 1t nolted that the case bristles with chaorrgoes

of repeatced acts of dishonesty either by the plaintiff or on his account,.

Before the brief re-examination of the plaintiff Mr, Chinsee

applied for certain amendments to Further snd Better Particulars vhich

[06 L
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the defendant had supplied. The amendments sought were merely of
a cosmetic nature znd though Mr. Haughton~Gayle objected they wore
rranted,
The defendant's case may he condensed thus:

( 1 The plaintiff is bound to the defendant by
- a contract whereby the defendunt agrees to

supply and the plaintiff to pay for
electricity consumed o2t the plaintiff's
premises.  siccordingly, if z2s a result a
tompering vhich enured golely to the benefit
of the plaintiff lic had avoided full payrent
for clectricity actually sunplied and
consumed he¢ cannot escape liability for such

not_/ electricity 2s has/been paid for otherwise,
and this assunes that the tamporing was
don¢ by the plaintiff himself or by his
servant or czent, he would he enabled to
profit from his own fraud.

(   Alternatively under the contract (see Revised Sheet # 211 below) the
| plaintiff would be in bre.ch of his contractual undertalking to be
responsible for the safety of the defcecndant!s equipment on the
plaintiff's premises,
Revised Sheet #7211 (so far as is relevant) reads:-

" The company shall have the right to
install and maintain in convenicnt
ané suitable ploces on the prenises
of the consumer free of chirge all
transformers, meters, wires and other
equipment necessary for the satisfactory

( ‘ sun»ly of clectricity to the consumer,
A 411 transformers, neters and other

equiprent furnished by the comp.ny shall
remain its property and the consumer

shill be liable for all danmages to or

loss of the conpany's property located

on the consumcr's vremiscs, unless such
damarse or loss is caused by the negli~nence
of the companYeeeeosneoss

At a ~zlance 1t would seem that this provision in the contrsct was ncot

designed with & clainm such s the instant one by the delendant in nmind

and it way be observed that no serious ofiort was made to (e
K\) duty thoupgh it was submitted by Mr. Chinsce in opening the case foxr the
defendant that if tawmpering was found to have been donc neither by the

plaintiff nor by his scrvant or agent, then because of the repularity
the plaintiff would be in brecch of the duty to take care, imposed by

this provision, of the defendant'!s egquipment, It is contended by the
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defendant that to produce the effect that has led to this litigation
trmpering had to be done at least once every two months and before the
melter reader makes hiz reading.

In supnort of the Defence and Counter-Clain several wilnessoes
vere called and they were all subjocted to very risourous cross-

examination which betrayed both tenacity and industry on the part of

Mrs. Haughton-Gayle. It was inescapzile, therefore, that the case

i "

would bLe extended over many days., Thelr cvidence covered the following

areas -

a) The meter readings on which the billing was doney
b) the checking of the meter to ascertain whether

there were any dcfects:
Y H

c) the gystem used to arrive at the amount counter-
claimed;

a) the checking of the meter to ascertain whether it
was registering correctly.,

In order of priority I think the question =s to whether the meter wis
defective or not ranks above the other arens of the voluminous cvidcnce
nresented by the defoence, Indeed, the proposition of tampering would

5
b

disaypear into thin air if it were demonstrated t!

at the meter was

defective. For tlie same reason also the counter-claim could nolt be
sustained. Accordinly, althoush the evidence was not presented in that
order T shall deal with that zupect of the evidence first.

The witness called to testify on the condition of the wneter
was Mr. aston Daly at the time a supervisor for the Service Irre -ularity
Investigations Denartment of the defendant company. In 1975 he uns
em; loyed s a meter technician, On the 24th October, 1975 on receipt
of - Meter Inspection Request (Fxhibit 7) he vigsited the plaintiff's
premises. The meter he found in the locotion as stated by the mlainviff,
Actually the meter is fitted into a metal panel on the wall, This nanel

"

carries a cover which, when in plice keeps the meter in position

prevent access to any butl authorised persons, this panel is sealed., o
found no seal on the cover. The meter itself carrics a seol at the back

but he s2w no such se2l.

/ ® [4*3
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A meter similar to the one in guestion was exhibited as

Exhibit 76, It is the type ordinarily scen cencased in a

188 COVeY.

)
It has four diels and is described as a 3-phased, U-wire socket type.
The metcer can be lifted out of the socket once the panel seal is remloved.
Access would then be grined to the pointers on the dials as well as to
the seal 2t the back of the meter. The meter 1s so gearcd that the
pointers move in scquence, If there is misplacement of the pointers they
would no longer be synchronised.

On observing the pointers of the meter he noted that they were
misplaceds The nearest digits indicated were 8265, Reading from right
7

to left (facing the meter) thc 5 represents units, the 6 tens, the 2

hundreds and the 8 thousands. He explnined that to get a correcct reading

pointer should be hetween 2 and 3 but ncarer to 3. However, when he saw
them the pointers were not in & position to read 8265. He adjusted the
pointers to read 8265 and sealed the back of the meter and the meter panel,
It is Mr. Daley's view that heving regard to the misplacenent
of the pointers the meter could not be recad accurately,
On the Meter Inspection Request (Exhibit 7) he noted the reading

8265 for date 24th October, 1975 ond under the heading "Load Data’® he
recorded the equipments he saw on the premises as follows:-

Lights 5.6 K.

Refrigerator 1

Television 1

Radio 1

Iron 1

Water heater 1

Floor polisher 1

Toaster 1

Deep freezers 3

Display cooler 3 (10 H.P, ~ APP)

1 HoP. motor water pump

% H.P. motor (kerosene pump)

Cash Rerister 5
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Also on Exhibit 7 the witness noted
it Meter found with nointers misplaced -

tanpering suspected - Poinvers adjusted

and left rcading 8265."
His opinion, having regeard to thie number of appliances he saw on the
premises is that a bi-monthly consuaption should be in the region of
15,600 K, He This view is cxpressed aszninst a backeround of tuenty-five
years with the company - five (5) of which were with Meter Testin: Depnrt-
ment and eight (8) or nine (9) in his prescnt departuent.

On 29th October, 1975, i.es, five (5) days later he re-inspected
the meter. It was then working properly and showing a reading of 3%95,

So in five days 1300 units had been consumed. He secaled the meter ponel
with a #3 seal and left the meter working properly.

It is in relation to this adjustment that the amount claimed by
way of Counter-Claim is estimated, Undoubtedly, some mischief of major
proportions was afoot. Was it tampering or a defective meter? The
enornity of the mischief is surmgested Ly the finures. For the five-duy
test period the consumption of 1300 units is at the avera-e of 200 units
per day. This is in keeping with Mr. Daley's estimate of 15,600 units for
a pi-monthly period. The reading just prior to Mr. Daley's checl showed
1240 units - an average daily consumption of about 18.5 units! and it is

out
not without interest to note that this check was carriedzauring the period
of decline, Compare the averape Jdally consumption with the geod times or,
if you please, the hich season. The highest billing during that period -
1972 - 1974 ~ as shown by Exhibit 4 is for 6000 units (27th January, 1972 -
27th March, 1972). That works out at rouzhly 98 units per day. By con=
trast during the period before the busincss picked up, according to the
plaintiff, there were bills for 17,620, 25,840, 19,200 and 18,200 for bi-
monthly readingse. This reflects a daily average which exceeded 400 units
per day and, at any rate, in excess of 300 units for the most parte The
reading but one before the check showed a consumption of 220 units for
two (2) months or less than 4 units ver day! These figures reflect the
consunption for the supermarket and the residence,

While contemplating the story which these figures appear to
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two factors
reveal it is important to bear An mind., They are these:~

Te The time of the check.

2e The reading 8265,

It is indeed sirnificant that the choeck was done in the middle of & two
aonth period., The next reading was not done until November 21, If
tanvering was being done it would have to be done on a regpular besis and
just before the meter was read since the effect would be to falsify the
amount registered as having been consumed, Hence, on 24th October, 1975
the meter, despite the misplacement of the pointers, would not have bcen
attended to in order to affect the reading in November. Under the headw-
ing "Present Reading' on the bill for the bi-monthly period ending

29th September, 1975 is the amount 5014 and yet on 24th October, 1975 -
twenty-~five (25) days later with misplaced pointers the reading nearest
to the misplaced pointers was 82651 How is it that the previous reading
did not show anything even close to 70007 If tampering was the cause
does this indicate that it was done more than once in = billing period?

Mr. Daley inspected the meter aszain January 1979 and found
intact the No. 3 seal he had placed on the panel cover and the meter woas
resistering accuratelys He is sure it is the same scal becouse he alone
was assigned sealing took No. 3 which is kept securely locked away., Every
sealing officcer is assisgned a tool with a different number which is
impressed on the seal whenever the teocl is used to seal a meter. Also
Mr., Daley testified that, to his knowledge, no repairs had been done on
that meter from he sealed it on 29th October, 1975 up to the time he
inspected it apain in January 1979, because no need for repairs was ia=
Adicated.

This, however, was not to be the last word on this aspect of
the case vital as it is to the defence and detrimental to the plaintiff's
nlea of non-tampering, He was to spend some testing hours under cross-
examination against the bockground of a manual of Watt Power Meters issued
by the General Electric Company. The witness was unfamilar with the
publication but after having a look at it he said he considered it an

authority on meters. Thereafter Mr. HaughtonmGayle literally threw the

/Q@?



(0770

beok nt him. But before dealing with that aspect of the cross-czamination
I will first disgose of a question that arose in relation to a note
made by tihc witness. In hils effort to refute the charre of tampering
Mr. Haughton=Gayle grabbed at anything in sipght., He sousht to make
capital out of an opinion noted by the witness on 29th October, 1975
but inasmuch as it 1s bascd on hearsey it must be denied any evidentizl
valne, And indeed, apparcantly on more mature thousht the witness
retracted the opinion. The note rcads:
B 29th October, 1975 - Re-checked Meter found
working correctly.
Meter now sealed with
seal .3,
I understand that the meter was dislodged
from socket sometime apo znd cover fell off,
That could have eaused pointers to be misplaced."”
It is the opinion expressed as to the possible cause for the misnlacement
of the pointers that found favour with Mr. Haughten-Gayle. In retracting
the opinion the witness zave as his reason the frct that the cover is
nade of plass and if the meter was dislodged and fell the cover would

a3

break, The fact i3 that no evidence of the meter having been Ciolodped

has been put before the court.

The witness testified tlhat without the proper placing of the
pointers a correct reading of tie amount of electricity actually suppliced
would never be ascertaineds He furthor said that althoush he did not
connect the meter hewas awarce that the pointers were initinlly properly
nlaced,

Let me now turn to the various factors which were sug

as possible causes for inaccurate repistering by a meter -~
dust or dirt on the electro-magnet;
defective bearing
disc shaft bent or out of alignment;
warped discs
defective coilj
magnetic forccs outside the meter such as a
powerful marnet applied to the meter while it
18 in operation;

creeping - the disc revolving without any load
being connectsd to the nmeter;

ghort-circuit in the voltage coil producing
creeping in the disc;

In cross~examination the witness did not concede the operation of any

Vs e R
£l 3
/ Ly 76»/
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of these factors and in re=examinetion he clarified. Tor ins

defective coil, a warped disc, a bent shaft and similoarly o defoective
bearing could only be corrected by replacing those parts. Tn the

!
witness knowledpe no such repair work was ever done to this metcer,
Such defects arc not self-correcting. The pointers are of white metal
and he doubts they would respond to a megsnet,  But even so as soon o8
the marnet is removed the pointers would function normally again.
Creeping, he said may be forward, when the increase would be hetween
3% and 5% or backwords producing a difference of not more than 5%,

I venture the comment thet is it difficult to understand why
the use of a powerful muymet should be put forward when that would he
a form of tamperingl

The witness admitted that dust or dirt or any other foreign
matter on the ¢lectro-magnet (a permanent magnet inside the meter
operated by electricity) can produce a malfunctioning in a meter but
that if the foreisn body becomes dislodred the meter will resume
functioning as it did before,

Irom the evidence the #eter 15 an enclosed unit which is

1.

further scaled into a socket in the wall, The probabilitics arce against

foreign matter invading the wmeter nd behaving in the manner su, ested
so as to produce misplacement of the pointers - not just a malfunction.
It should be pointed out thatthis witness did not carry out
any test of the "iweter because once he sew the misplaced pointers he
concentrated on correcting them and since the meter functioned satisfac-
torily thereafter, in his opinion, the need for any further check was
not indicated. He did not apree that an nlert meter reader who has been
dealing with the same meter over a period of time should be able to
detect a fall-off in consuhption. The reason he save ic that the meter
reading sheet supplied the meter reader shows the previous reading but
not the consumption, I cannot say thst I am altogether happy with that
answer because although the shezt does not show the consumption the

difference hetween the previous reacdin. and the prescnt s seen by the

meter reader sihould zlert him as to a ridiculously low-reading for tlose
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premises,

Asked to account for the difference in the consumption as ot

~ 0 4 o . . : . . .
25th July, 1978 and 25th September, 1979 (see Exhibit 4. supra) th

o

witness said that may be due to under-rending. DBut the difference would
be picked up in the next reading, sronted the meter is functicning
proverlys In this regard it nsy be ohserved that the next reading on
22nd Wovember, 1978 shows a congunption which may well bs explained on
thaf bazis in that it produces an average in keeping with the other
consumption figures in Oxhibit 4.

The othier witness whose evidence dealt with the working of Lhe
meter was Mr, Horace McCormack, thouszh it must be ohserved that his test
was not done until June 26, 1979 nearly four years after the inspection
done by Mr. Daly on October 24, 1975. ILike Mr. Daly, though junior to
him, this witness is o supervisor in the Service Irregularity Investigsntion
Department, He is a gradunte of the College of Arts Science and Technology
(C.i.9.T.) in Electriczl Enginecring as well as being a licensed electri-

~

cian., He has been employed to the defendant company since 1971 during

N

which time he received three (3) y2ars training in the field of metering.

!

Apparently the reason for calling this witness was to demonstrate that

[

even up te four years from the adjusting of the pointers and the sealing
of the meter by Mr. Daly the wmeter had not manifested any malfunctioning.

Having rcceived =@ meter Inspection Reguest (Exhibit 13) from
his Head Office he proceaded to the plaintiff's supermarket on June 256,
1979 and carried out teszts.

On inspection he observaed that the panel was sealed by a Ho. 3
seals This is the number of the sealing tool used by Mre Daly. There is
no evidence to base a finding other than that this is the very seal put
on by Mr. Daly in October, 1975. It is significant to observe that there
was no misplacement of the pointers, Mr. Daly had testified that if when
the meter was installed the pointers had been misplaced the meter would
never correct its¢lf and so would not mive a correct reading. TFour years
after the pointers were adjusted by Mr, Daly they were found fto be still

functioning properly. What is the inference to be drawn? It is not

[0
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Aifficult to identify the 2nswer to this question as being at the v

core of the case, Accordingly, it must be post-poned until oll the
relevant factors have been duly considered.
Mres McCormack procceded to note the nuaher o»f the meter, tuke

a reading from a repist

in the meter, make a stown-watch check of the
meter, observe the condition of the meter including a good look at the
inside of the meter hefore breaking the socket seal., Having broken the
seal he removed the meter from the socket and observed around the base
of the meter and the wiring of the socket. Next, he removed tue
cover of the meter to insiect the inside of the meter., This ho found
to be in satisfroctory condition -~ the disc floating correctly in its
field, the gears meshing correctly wnd the wirding connections proper.

1
)

The glass cover wis then replzced and the meter re~inscrted into the
sockets

It may be timely to observe that the visual inspection did
nct disclose any of the defects which were put to Mr., Daly in cross-
examination as capable of producing malfunctioning. The sicnificance
of this will be fully apprecicted when it is borne in mind that the
evidence does not discloge any repairs since Mre. Daly's inspection in
Octnober, 1975 and January, 1979.

Having thus far saticfied himself Mr. McCormack procoaded to
attach his eccouipments to test the functioning of the meter. Thece equip-

ments were -

1 An Ammeter, which he attoched te the wire.
2 A Voltage leter and
e 4 Power PFactor Mcter,

The latter two were attached to the terminals
behind the meter,

The Ammeter measures the current, the Voltapge Meter the voltapge and the

Power Factor Meter the Power Factor. These meters would measure the amount

of power actually being consumed and this would be compared with what the
neter was repistering, TFrom the readings on those meters the witness sai

3

lhe was able to calculate the consumption, The readings were -

d
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Lo amps

Current -
0
Voltage - 210
z
Power Foctor - - 086

By applying a formula used by the dzfendant company he would arrive at

the power for sany second, The test wos run on a 10 - second basis,

lere then is the formula together with the result:

Formula: 1473 ¥ current (40) X
Voltame (218) X Power Factor (,086)

Result: 12.9736 K,%, per sccond,

But before any dependence can be placed on the result the status of the
formula must first be esmtaoblised, The witness! answer in this repard,
cnd 1t has not becn contradicted, is that this is a standord formula in
Flectrical Enginecring,.

The revolutions of the disc were checked by a stop-watch and
found to be 3 in 10 seconds, DBEvery meter has 2 watt hour constont which
s 12 on this meter,

Another standard formula in metering was employed -

Disc revs 4 2600 X watt hre. constant i.e. 3 X 3600 X 12
1

Time in scconds 1000 0 1000

produced = consumption of 12,960 Ki, This is vhot the meter was
registering. Hence, there wns slirht advantage (0.0136 K per second) in
favour of the consumer, The metcr was registering slightly less than the

actual load. What he reparded as the actual load he listed on Exhibit 13,

These were =~

Te Iights 90
2e Refrigerators 1
S Deep Freeze 3
L Display Coolers 3
Se Cash Registers 6

A

On the basis of his tests ke calculéated a bi-monthly consumption of
13050 KWH. His opinion recorded at the appropriate section of BExhibit 13
was

" meter found working correctly no sign of any

faults. Repistered consumption is quite
appropriate for the way connected load is used.”
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It may be useful to note that of the listed load items 2, 3 ~nd 4 would
consume electricity on a 24 hour basis but items 1 and 5 would not.

By comparison Mr., McCormack listed fewer items thean Mr,., Daly.
Both recorded the same number of anyliances requiring electricity on a
twenty-four (24) hour busis snd Mr. McCormack hes six (6) Cash Revisters
whereas lrs Daly has five (5.) But having regard to the items linted Dby

Mr. Dazly and not appeasring on Mr. McCormack'!s tally it would appenr that

a

Mre. McCormack did not check the residcnce,

flis test omits -

1 T.V. ]

1 Radio

1 Ircen

1 Water Heater

1 Floor Polisher

1 Toaster
It is difficult to believe that the use of all the omitted itens which
seem to relate to the residence had been discontinued. However, even if
these were still in use and not noted by him by their very niture theoir
usage would he occasional. He omitted as well the Kerosene Pump and the
Water Pump. The bi-monthly consumption as given by Mr. Daly was 15600 KUI,
Mr. McCormack}s reckoning, it was 12050, There h=s been no allesttion of
tampering during the intervening period.s So that, if the conclucsion is
that the meter is not defective and lMr. McCormack has indeed recordad the
rictual load, then the decline weuld seem to be attributable to the pattern
of usage. Hoving completed his test the witness again removed the nmeter
from the socket and sealed the base of the meter with 2 No. 5 seal by
his sealing tool bhearing that number, He then replaced the meter in the
socket and sealed the socket too with a No, 5 seals His examination had
discovered no defects and no foreigh Dbodye.

If it appears that much attention is paid to the evidence of
this witness I hasten to stote that the reason is clear. He spent the
hetter part of two dnys in the witness~box the greater portion of which
sorjourn was in confrontation with a most persistent opponent, .nd this

was necessarily so because ho was the only witness put forward whose

/075
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evidence has to do with the actual testing of the ueter, Indeed, 1t wus

the relative values of other recornisced methods of testing a meteres Such
cross-examination will either enhance the value of his methods 2ud the
conclusions drawn or cheapen then,

Mestioned on the advntage, 1f any, of testing a meter at high
anl low voltage he parried with Mr. loushton-Gayle =s to the meaning of
low volta e contending that as agninst 1300 low can be 110 hut rounded
off that there was no adventage in testing at high, anormal or low voltage
He did admit that it was a mormal occurrence since 1970 for the voltane
supply to fluctuate. 4t the plaintiff's premises there is a 3-phased
pervice carrying & combinstion of 110 v and 220 v - the normal heing any-
where bhetween 215 and 230 volts. Voltage fluctustes according to lood with
n tolerance bein;; allowed, he explained. His attention was directed to

the under-registering of the wmeter thus:-

Qe Having regard to your findings 4id you form
any opinion as to why the meter was replstering
Below the actual load?

e Yese Meters can bo calibrated to an accuracy

of plus or minus 2% and looking at these values
I realise I would fall well within that liviite
If meter showing between 100% and 98% accurate
I weould say it is accurate.

The opinion I formed is that the meter would be
registering less than 100% of the actuzl load
but not out of 2%.

Having regard to the provisions in Sheet Nol.212 of Standard Terms and
/

Conditions (supra relating to an inaccuracy in excess of 2% the witness'
~

answer in relation to a deficit of 2% in the registration obviously

.

excited more than passing interest in his questioner and some time was

spent on this aspect of the case., in effort was nmade to gaim the con-
cession from the witness that a meter repistering 98% of the actual lond

is running too slow but he explained that this is not necessarily so because
the defend'nt company (Jamcica Public Service) mrkes an allowance for a

pluc or minus 2% tolerance in commercial meters. So that within that
tolerance he would say the meter is rersislering accurately.

In advancing the contenltion of malfunctioning as opposed Lo

tampering as the defendant contends Mr, Haughton-Goeyle questioned the

P
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witness ot Jensth on factors that can amount for 2 neter reristering Telow

load znd also as to the reliability of his stop-watch test. s

method of the test he maintained that, that is a recopnised
method of testing meters. This wae in response to the clulm of other

methods such as the Portable Stondard Watt Meter Test and o Bench Tes

ith the aid of a microscowe sand, thousgh he conceded that the Pertable
Standard Watt Meter Test has the facility for eliminating errors which
may arise when other methods are employed, he maintained that he has no
reason to guestion the reliability of his method or the cnsuing results
hecause he is familiar with the method and his instruments are used
normally on a dailly basis. He had been supplied his instruments nev,
though he could not specify the date, wlong with the manufacturer's
manual. and indeed, the test he did included a att MHeter Test 1.c. a
combination of the Volt Meter Test and the .ummeter Test.

Taken through the pamut of the possible causes for a meter

recisterin.g below the actunl load apart from the 2% tolerznce in the

the explanations that justify his rejection of any of those factors

being accountable for the less than 100% resistration,

One cannot fault the plaintiff's attorney for opting for what,
in the circumstances, may be regarded as o more sophiscated method of
testing meters, But, if in the field of Electrical Engineering, alter-
native methods are accredited, then the mere f2ct that one such method
is adonted &z agoinst another or others is not sufficiont reason for
denigrating the ono used or rejecting its findings in the absence of some
defect in the instruments used or incompetence in the person conducting
the test, It is obvious that Mr. Haushton-Gayle appreciated this and

consequently was unsparing in his efforts to achieve the desired resulte.

From the Electrical Meter Man's Hand-book by Edison with which Mr. McCormack

be
claimed to Aamiliar a barrage of questions was hurled at him, and thoush

he was at times discomfitted, in much the came way as a competent batsman

may be unsettled by an awkward bouncer, he nonetheless rejsiined his

composure sufficiently to deal with the situation with accepteble competence
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and honesty, He disclosed that he had gone to the plaintiff's premises

)

prepared to change the meter if any defects were discovered, but no

This would meet head-on with any susgestion that lie
advance assumed the accuracy of the meter and that nic visit wes merely for
the purpose of confirmins that assumption.

It is appropriste at this stage to come to a determinstion on “he
all-important question as to whether the meter wes defective, nnd oo
malfunctioned, or malfunctioned bhecause of interference other than by way
of tompering e.ge because of dust or dirt or any other agent or was in fuct
deliberately tampered with so &3 not to register, as it was capeble of doing,
the amount of electricity consumed, dus repgard being hed to the plus or
minus 2% tolercnce allowed by the Jamaica Public Service., This is so hecause,
if defect there be that would put paid to the defendant's basis for arriving
at the plaintiff's liability and, accordingly, the Counter-Claim would be
without 2 leg on which to stand, And then, of course, the plaintiff's clain
would be without any opposition.

I am deeply indebted to Mr. Haughton-Gayle for the purposeful and
tenacious presentation of the plaintiff's cause which wore its best abhpearance
in his efforts to blunt the thrust of the defendant., The various matters
regquiring consideration in dealing with the reliability of the meter were
anply ventilated as he contended with a monopolistic giant whose conduct is
not always above reproach., The two techincial witnesses, Messrs Daly and
McCormack, on whose evidence great reliunce must he placed to find a solution
to the question under cinsideration had their competence acidly tested.

Worthy of note in this regard is that in the welter of suggestions
and the resulting mass of evidence attendant upon the effort to discredit the
meter as a competent apgent for rezistering the consumption at the plaintifﬁ's
rvremises the evidence of Mr, Daly that at the time of his check on 24th
October, 1975 he found the pointers misplaced and that since he adjusted them
and sealed the meter there has been no subsequent misplacement, clamours for
an explanation inconsistent with tamperinge No such evidence was forthcoming
nor ddoes the evidence favour a finding that the meter was either defective or

malfunctioninge. i conclusion that there was tampering is indicated as the
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only rationsl finding and that is what I find.

The plaintiff's attorney vigorously rcsisted not only = finling
on tampering but what would seem to flow niturally from such a finding,
namely, that thie customer is lialle to pay the company for electricity
supplied but for which, hecause of the tampering, payment could not have
been nade. nd this vas so despite the plaintiff's adnission that as an
honest man he expected to pay for clectricity actunlly consumed ropardless
of whether the meter was working properly or not. But he may be excused

for so thinking if indeed that was not the legal effect of the contract

4

into which he had entered., 1In this regard it is appropriate to note
paragraph 18 of the licence pranted the Jamaica Public Scrvice under the
Electric Lighting Layu and publisbed in the Jamaica Gazette Lxtraordinary
< ») RN
dated 16th June, 1966 (Fxhibit 11) which provided (in part):=-
" The rights of any person desiring to obtain
electric service will he subject to his
entering into an agreement with the compuny
in such form a3 may be established hy the
company Ffrom time to time with the anproval
of the Public Utility Commission.'
In keeping with this provision the defendant tendered in evidence as Lxhibit
12 the Jamaica Gazette Ixtraordinary dated 12th September, 1974 exhibiting
the order confirming Proposed Tariff with modificntions which were issued
under the Public Utility Commission sict, 1966. An increase in the rotes
charpeable by the Company was provided with effect from Aurust 1, 197k,
However, such nrovisions would bLe irrelevant to the point at issue if din
fact the plaintiff is exonerated from payinsg. But inasmuch s it would be
ultra vires the company to contract outside the terms of its licence it
must be ascumed that the contract sisned by the plaintiff conforms with
the law, there being no evidence or submissions to the contrary.
The argument for the plaintiff proceeded thus:-
Reviced Sheet No. 212 which is incormnorated into
the contract tetween the plaintiff and the
defenduont contecuplated the mossibility that there
misht be tampering ond made provision for what
the company c2n claim in the event of tamvering -
" In the event of any repistration inaccurate
in excess of 2%, bills will be adjusted DY

an amount to compensate for the ezcess or
defTiciency for a period equal to one half
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1 of the time elapsed since the previous
meter test, but not to excecd three
monthsh
Accordingly since there ic no evidence of any metcr test nrior to
Mre Daly's visit on 2hth October, 1975 there is no period with reference
to which an zdjustment con be mides. Further, tc Le entitled to recover
enything at all from the plaintiff the company would have to »rove that
the inaccuracy wos not in excess of 2%, Support for this contention was

sought from Joscph v Fast Ham Corporation (1936) 1 K.B, 267 at page 379

where Slesser J in his judgwent sald -

W There was nc sum ascertained to be due at
all for in the absence of a statutory neter
it was not possible to say what payments were
in arrear if any."

But I can find no assistunce from this decision which having regard to the
law and the findings of fact could not bhe otherwisc. Section 49 of the
Flectric Lighting dct, 1882 (as amended by the Flectric Lighting .ict 1908)
Second Schedule provided:-

T The amount of energy supplied by the undertakers

to any ordinary consumer under the special order,
or the electrical quantity contained in the supply
(according to the method by which the undertakers
elect to charpge) hereinafter referred to as 'the
value of the supplyt, shall except as otherwise

apreed lLetween the consumer and the undert-kers

be ascertained by means of an appropriate nmecter
duly certified under the provisions of the special
order.,"
The undertakers had not supplied such a meter and arising out of a dispute
as to the amount due to the suppliers the customer's supprly was Jdisconnected,
For the rceason stated this was held to be wrong.
in 9bvious objection to the plaintiff's plea, and this was

brought to the attention of his attorney, who readily agrced that it was

3
correct, was that it would be contrary to public policy for the company
to have said to the plaintiff that it expected that the plaintiff might
act fraudulently by tampering with its equipment so a pecuniary provision
was included by meons of Revisced Sheet No. 212 against such contigency.
It was conceded that, that would he defamatory of the plaintiff.

But if that were the intendment of Revised Sheet No. 212 one would

expect it to exact a severe pecuniary penalty. On the contrary, the very
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argutient advanced demonstrates thet it did no such thing. Indoed 1if this
provision were interpreted to accommodate the claim for the plaintifs
rather strainge result would follow., Ffor, while appearing to discountenance
tempering the provision would larsely benefit the customer while the
Compony would be lep2lly ham~struns in its effort to collect whaot nay well
be a miniscule portion of the amount of which it has been deprived LY

~

tampering, And @o, ia breach of public policy, 2 customer could bhe
virtually guaranteed profit by his own fraud,

Revised Sheet No. 212 may well be thought to exact a pennlty of
the company not with respect to tmmpering, but for allowing a defective
or malfunctioning meter to remain in service for an inordinately long
period, It is Revised Sheet No. 208 which deals with tamperinge It
empowers the company to disconnect for tampering but gives no power to
collect a fine,

The question whether the company contracted out of the ri-ht to
claim payment for electricity supplied but not paid for hecause the meter
recistration has been falsified by tompering must be answered in the
nepatives What zood reason could there he to the contrary? Even accenting
the strained explanation put upon the plaintiff's evidence by hies attorney,
viz:

-

o After receiving the letter I was satisfied
that the sllegction of tampering was true. I
gtill Teel that the meter was tampered with,"

to mean that
" The plaintiff not admitting tampering by himself
or on his behalf, All he is saying ie that he
accepted in good faith what the defendant had
sald about tampering: Man's opinion no better
than his information. Plaintiffts state of
mind based on the letter received from
Mr. Bennett (d/d 16/2/75.) Hence his evidence
doeg not help on the issue of bampering,"
I conclude that the liability to pay Jdoes not rest on the plaintiff'c
knowledge of tampering but upon proof of supply for which the company was
not =ble to claim because of tampering. But evenso, could it bte seriously

maintoined that the plaintifi wes unaware that at a time when his business

hed improved he was paying for two months supply such amounts as 485,05,
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239,12 and even a8 low as 523,607 Uhy should 2 siran-er, for no disclose:’
henefits, perzistently attend at the nlaintiff's premises to tomper with
the meter zo that the plaintiff (all unknown to him, the plaintiff) mi ht

lerive benefits which according to the conpany has ~r2romated over

$14,0002 T am not impressed by any such largess by any phantom henefactor.
The plaintiff's nervousness when tamueriny was mentioned appearcd to e
te be consistent with neither innocence nor ignorance. JAnd since, on the
evidence, the results of the ftamperin:s inured solely to the henefit of the
plaintiff he must pay such amounts ns are shown to be proper adjustment
for the period affected by the tmmpering.

In its endeavour to establish that the amount claimed by way
of Counter-Claim is a fair asscssment of the amount of which it lhad been
deprived during the period under consideration the defendant called
Mr. Oliver .nthony White who for approximately thirty (30) years hos been
a meter reader employed to the Jamaica Public Service in the Mandeville
area and who, for the most part, read the mceter at the plaintiff’s DYEMLIZeS
e w285 in tue witness-box on more than one occasion on esch of which he

1.

seemed to be affected by the inpgestion of some would-be booster and T hod
the distinct impression that the evidence he gave was less than e knew,

But he could not be harshly treated by the party calling him and neither

did the opponent treat him very harshly.

He tesgtified that the system in meter rending was chonged after
September, 1971 when the company changed to computerigzed accounts. Under
the old system the meter reader visited the premises with a nmeter reading
book in which he would record tie recadings on the weter then affix his
signature and the date the reading was done. Under the ncw systom the
book issued to the meter reader is really a number of sheets on ench of
which the dnate on which the meter is to be read is already printed. In
actual practice it was not aluays possible to comply with the result that
e sheet might reflect the printed date ns well as the date entered by the
reader when the reading was done. A hook may contain from 75 up to 150
sheets and in order to try and keep in line with the printed date the

realing nisht be done a day or tuo doys prior to the printed date but not
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later then the printed A-te in order to return the sheets to the office
within the time specified. Not unreasonably the plaintiff's attorney tried
to exploit this deviation in an e¢ffort to sccount for the variaticns in
<~\ the readings., But the effect of this weuld be minimal and certainly could
not account for perzistent low readings over a period when the connsumption
of electricity wazs cxpected to rise.

On the question ns to whether he ouzht to have ohserved a “romatic
diminution in the rote of consumption at the plaintiffl!s premiscs he
explained that the neter rewding sheets showed previous reading but not
previous consumption so ‘thore was nothing to anlert him to any drop in
consumntion, It is just possible that 1f his interest did not go beyond

(;;\ reading and recording the meter repist®ation then his answer might well
be true provided there are no other factors known to hime. JAgain on the
gquestion of the presence or absence of the meter socket seal he answered
it was not his duty to check on seals. But in almost the same hreath,
while testifyin,; unfer cross-examination he unburdened himself of the
information that in the Mandeville arez he had scen a not insipgnificant
number of meters without seals - between one-half and three-guurters of
the number seen had seals, Jhat was not queried was when in rel:tion to

( } the times at which those neters were installed, He proferred the explana-
tion that the company was short of seals. How he would come by this
knowledge was not disclosed, His duties do not embrace that aspect of
the company's activities. So that without more I regard such evidence as
tenuous and in so doing I hear in mind the lack of embarrassment, I almost
said the satisfaction, with which he made the disclosure,

Tt was hoped to demonstrate from this witness'! testimony that

the plaintiff had been hilled in keeping with the meter reading and so

\ Jﬁ could not have paid for consumption not reflected in such readings.
Refreshing his memory from the Meter Reading Book in which he identified
his hand-writing he gave meter readings up to 26th MNovember, 1972, after

which date he said the computer sheets were introduced, thus:-
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264 34 69 1890 K.u.4,
27« 54 69 3688 o
Phy 74 69 shoo
2he 94 69 7232 "
254114 69 9850 '
27 Te 70 1736 ¢
2k, 3. 70 3556 "
264 54 70 o m
27+ 7+ 70 - 5180 il
2he 9. 70 5988 u
254114 70 6658 n
26. 1e 71 _ 6955 w
25¢ Fa0 71 8658 n
27¢ He 71 No Reading
2he 94 71 322 Kol
26e 1s 72 824w
27e¢ e 72 1424 "
26. 5, 72 203k 1
P2he 7o 72 2600 n
26. 9. 72 3217
264114 72 38310 0w

Beyond this point the witness, with the consent of Mr. Taushton~Gayle was
allowed to refresh his memory from photostat copies of the computer sheets,
His evidence flowed freely as he identified his hand-writing on the various
sheets before making use of them. However, the sheet following the reading
for 25th March, 1976 was stated by the witness not to bhear bhis hand-writing
and quite properly lr. Hauphton=Gayle olijected to the witness making use
of such a Jdocument, But he went further and said he was withdraving his
cousent to the copies beinrs used because he had bheen misled, The originals
would have to be used,

Indeed, o witness cannot refresh his memory from a docunecnt not
created by him nor with which hc¢ had done nothingse The objection was up=

held but it could only properly relate to the impuzned coples, thousih
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Mre Haughton=Gayle would have it to be effective ab initio. What had

been used in keeping with the consent given revealed the following readings:

22« 1o 73
e 3+ 73
30e 5. 73

264 7e 7%

23+ 94 75
2,11, 75
264 1. 76

25, 3. 76

030 K, ,H,
hoko  w
I+396 T

Lezh ]

1812

The available originals supplied the following redngs:

23¢ 9e 77
25+ 1. 78
23, 3 78
254 74 78
25¢ 94 78

224114 78

Lehp W, H.

7285 "
8625
1589 ©
1814
Loo6 !

The readings are cumiulative so that to alve at the consurm-
g it

tion for a two (2) month reriod the reading at the Haning of the period

is subtracted from the readines at the end of the peigd and multinlying

the result by 10, Further, the witness explained tt yhere the lator

reading is less than the previous that is accounted » by the fact that

the meter had rupn its full course and started again m 0.

ey
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That explanation may well account from some apparent contradictions but
certainly not all,

A look at the reading supplied reveals the absence of readings
for May and July, 1975, From the bills (Exhihit 4) fhose readings were:~

25. 5« 75 5868

23. 7e 75 5890.
The interesting observation can therefore be made that for the period
2k, 1. 7?4 - 23, 7. 75 during which ten (10) readings were done the
pointer indicating thousands did not make it beyond the point where a
reading of '5' could be recorded. By 23rd September, 1975 it had hurdled
the 5 and a reading of 6014k was recorded. It was roughly one month later,
on 24th October, 1975, that Mr. Daly saw the misplaced pointers with the
nearest reading being 8265, He =djusted them to read 8265 and by sealing
the meter as it were gave the meter a free hand to do its work, Five days
later ~ 29th October, 1975 it was recording a consumption of 1300 KWE which
exceeded some and more than doubled some of the previous two (2) months
comsumption! 1Indeed at the next regular reading on 21st November, 1975
a consumption of 29520 KWH since the reading of 6014 on 23rd September,
1975 was recorded.

My reaction to that consumption figure i3 that it is abnormal
being roughly twice what was thereafter reparded as acceptable for & two-
month period. The explanation would seem to be that, that figure embraces
two periods ~ one in which there was interference and the other an inter-
ference ffee period, The neced for adjustment in the amount charged is
thus indicated and unless this figured in the calculations of Mr., Bennett
the next witness credit will have to be given the plaintiff for an
appropriate amount,

Before parting with this witness I am tempted to ask whether he
was over~boosted, It was observed that he misrcad some of the readings
which he had recorded = 4636 the reading he recorded for 25th September,
1973 he corrected to 4634, The bill showed 4636. Most significantly
however i& his reading of 6652 on 25th September, 1973 though no reading

beginning with '6' was recorded until 10 readings later. The rcading he

/ O ’> L::?
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gave following 6652 is 4888 which on the billis shown as 4838. However,
allowance must be made for the fact that the photostat copies might not
have been easy to rcads Nor can it be glossed over that the reading 6652
does not appear on the relevant bill nor on any other bill for that mattcr.
The figure appearing is 4838 reflecting a consumption of 2020 KWH instead
of 20,160 KWH,

Before passing on to deal with the evidence of Mr. Howard Bennett,
manager of the Department of Billing and Revenue Accounting, I will just
mention one other witness called by the defence., His evidence related to
one date onlyes He was Mre. Clinton White, a meter reader who could recall

reading the meter at the premises in quest.on only once, i.e. on the
18th November, 1975 when the reading was 8902, At that time he saw the
meter sealed,

The evidence of Mre. Bennett is readily identified as being of
critical importance and as a consequence his stay in the witness-box mostly
at the instance of Mr. Haughton~Gayle, was of some duration - the better
part of four days during June and November, 1979 I will not however set
out his evidence exhaustively as that is not necessary for an adeguate
assessment thereof., He explained the system of meter reading prior to and
since May, 1971. At first the meter reader was issued with a Meter Reading
Book with which he traversed his route and in which he recorded the readings
on the meters along the route. The book would then be returncd to the
Meter Reading Centre and thence to the Head Office in Kingston where the

billing was done. The work then was manually done. During the period

‘May, 1971 - October, 1971 the system was computerized on a phased basis

which extended to about November, 1972. Under the new system computer
sheets replaced the Meter Reading Book and on these sheets were printed
before-hand the dates on which the meters were to be read and for the
computer these were the dates used though in fact, as the evidence showed,
the reading might have been done a day or two before or after the printed
dates It would seem that fluctuations between the printed dates and the
dates of actual recading could account for slight, but certainly not sub-
stantial, variations in the reflectcd consumption from one two-month

period to another, Further he explained the billing and payment systems
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as well as the method of estimating consumption.

Estinmntes are usually determined by using the average consump-
tion over the previous billing periods based on actual readings.
Occapionally an arbitrary fipgure may be used but this would be adjusted
when an actual reading was dones. It was essential to have this systom
of making estimates explained bhecause several of the relevant hills show
the consumption to have bheen estimated and a live issue in the case is
the contention by the plaintiff that Revised Sheet No. 212 in so far as
it related to estimated consumption is applicable only if the meter
stops or fails to register or produces an inaccurate rezistration for
whatever reason. The witness reforred of Revised Sheet No. 209 which
also refers to estimating bills. Revised Sheet Noe. 209 which deals with
Reconnection of Services states at para (4)

" All bills for service due, including

estimated amounts due to the Company

by reason of fraudulent use of tanmpering

must be paid etc.'
I venture the comment that it is obvious that estimating of bills is a
firm plank in the revenue-collecting structure of the Company. And,
indeed, it is not open to objection if it is properly done so that the
company is not thereby supplied with a tool for unjust gain by charging
for services not rendered, There may conceilvably be circumstances beyond
the company's control which preclude the reading of some meters at the
required times and without this facility the company's revenue~collection
could be wery seriously embarrassed. Estimating is even coded into the
system as Code 4.

It was the witness! responsibility to justify the defendant's
counter-claim of #14,715.08 and in the process he was certainly made to
earn his keep. The process bepgan with the inspection of the meter by
Mr. Aston Daly on 24th October, 1975 the results of which formed the
basis for the estimated consumption sought to be recovered from the
plaintiff.

The leter Inspection Request (Exhibit 7) on which Mr. Daly had

recorded the results of his inspection on the 24th and 29th October, 1975

[ 06%
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and the reading 29202 recorded by Mr. Clinton White on 18th November, 1975
provided data used in celculation of the amount counter-claimed ond in
making the calculation regard was had to the fact that the Comwnany does
ite Lilling on a sixty (60) day bisis, The consumption for the period
was 6370 KWH for twenty-four (24) dsys and on that basis an estimate of
1592k was produced for sixty (60) Aays.

It will be reculled that the bill (part of Bxhibit 4) showing
the consumption for the period 29th September, 1975 - 21st November, 1975
contains the abnormally high figurc of 29520 to which I have already
alluded., The witness explains that, that was the result of an error vhich
was subsecuently corrected and the account debited by $1,017.17 as
notified to the plaintiff by letter 23rd February, 1976 (part of Exhibit
9)

On the bhasis of a bie~monthly consumption of 15924 KWH the
account was adjusted from 25th May, 1970 to 29th September, 1975 and
produced an amount of $156,787.%%, But this figure included charges
already made tco the tune of $4,082,25, When this amount was deducted the
result is $14,715.08 - the amount in the counter-claim. By virtue of
payments made by the plaintiff the amount had been reduced to $2,705.08
as at November 12, 1979. .lso 1t wos disclosed that the plaintiff had been
paying his current bills.

So far as the amount claimed roes the witness did not wnake the
original calculations. These were done by his staff and then Submifted to
him, On checking them he discovered seven errors which when corrected
resulted in the plaintiff's favour to the extent of §18.53 - there were
six errors of over-charging amounting to $97.35 and one under~charging
amounting to §78.82. Hence a nett difference of $18.53., (The witness!
calculation sheet was nmut in evidence as Dxhibit 10) this was the fruit of
& very painstaking and persistent cross-examinetion which was to yield more.

Implicit in the cross-examination was the view that while the
calculation of the amount claimed on the sixty (60) day basis is undoubtedly
more convenient to the company it nevertholess worked an injustice to the

plaintiff. The base period which the defendant used (Oztober 24 - November
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19) is really tventy-five (25) days cnd the plointiff contended that,

whereas the readine for the period is factual the calculatlon on a sixty

(60) day besis io speculative. The witness admitted that on the basis

ed the biemonthly consumption would be 15288 KWH instend of 15924

which would yield o difference in the plaintiff's favour of #742.05. 5o

the plaintiff must recsive credit for this amount. The cross-examination,

zven if taxing, was not fruitless ac the results show. It tested 2ll

aspects of the defendant's calculation including the Fuel Clause ..djustment
£ & J

Rate and Fnergy Charge in addition to Arawing attention to every bHill

submitted to the plaintiff up to September, 1975. Further it went into

the =zctual computation of several bills, testing the accuracya.

The plaintiff must therefore be given credit for $18.53 + §742.55
- $761438, The amount counter=-claimed must be accordingly reduced. The
result is $13,953.70.

It chould be natural to procced to enter Judgnent for the defendant
for the amount less payments., But such a step must he shown to have paid
due regard to the submissions of Mr, Haushton-Gayle who did his utmost to
avert such a conclusion, In the process he submitted exhaustively that
there was no evidence to support = finding of tamvering even bholstering
that submission with another which is, that even if tampering were found
Revised 3heet ;212 would apply. Accordingly, the company would be ohliged
to show that any inaccuracy in registration resulting from tampering falls
within the 2% margin provided for in Revised Sheet #212 (supra.) Also if
that were not enough, he clung tenaciously to another submission:

Does the contract Detween the parties require

the plaintiff to pay for the amount of electricity

actually consumed by him as the defendant contends?

Tn considering that issue there must be considered

also whether the 2lleged term of the contract on

which the defendant relies is a fundamental term

or any hreach thereof is a fundamental brench so as

to wreclude reliance on Revised Sheet 7212,

I have already dealt with Revised Sheet #212. It is the plain=-

tiffts evidence that he expected to pay for electricity supplied to and

’

consumed on his pr:

¢

mises and I can see no rexson why the defendant should

contract on any other basis. Indeed this is the contention of the defendrnt

s
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211 alonge The only fetiter to the company's risht to collect is set out
in Revised Sheet /212, The attempt to fit the plaintiff's cuse into that

regstricted arca despite the moest strenuous efforts hos nroduced & result

about as comfortable as o size 9 foot in a size % shoe.

In order %to crystallize the matter Mr., Haughton-Cuyle yas
by the court:

W If, controry o your submissions, tempering
was found to have token place over the period
in qunstion what would be the consecquence??

He responded:

" On assumption that the meter has meen found
to be recsistering accurately at o point in
time to enable the ascertainment of what the
amount during tampering was I supposce a claim
could properly be made for the due arrcars,i

But =0 snon as he had reluctantly rade thot concession he retreated to
his shelter under Revised Sheet ;212.

In the 1lisht of the facts found the plaintiff is not entistled
to any of the reliefs claimed, Therce will be judgment with costs to tue
defendant on the claime s vreviously st-ted the true amount of the
counter-claim should be %£13,953,70, The defendant will have judgment in
thie amount with costs. This figure will be adjusted in kéeping with the
payments made by the plaintiff,

Costs to be agreed or taxed,

BSefore parting with this case I woul? 1ike to rzcord my repgret

%]

't the delay in presenting this judgment which was occasioned by the
intense competition among seversl judpments for the very limited time
at my dispos=l, Put I am grateful for the patience of counsel in the

>

meantime,





